ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE COVMUNI TY AND REG ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 3, 2012
3:34 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Donald d son, Chair
Senat or Thomas WAgoner
Senator Al bert Kookesh
Senat or Linda Menard

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Johnny Ellis

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative Cathy Minoz
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 9(FIN) am

"An Act relating to the Al aska Gasline Devel opnent Corporation,
a subsidiary created by the Al aska Housing Finance Corporation;
establishing and relating to the in-state natural gas pipeline
fund; making certain information provided to or by the Al aska
Gasline Devel opnent Corporation exenpt from inspection as a
public record, relating to the Joint In-State Gasline
Devel opnent Team relating to the judicial review of a right-of-
way | ease or an action or decision related to the devel opnent or
construction of an oil or gas pipeline on state land; relating
to the lease of a right-of-way by the Al aska Gasline Devel opnent
Corporation or a successor in interest for a gas pipeline
transportation «corridor; relating to the cost of natural
resources, permts, and |eases provided to the Al aska Gasline
Devel opnent Corporation; relating to the review of natural gas
transportation contracts by the Regul atory Comm ssion of Al aska;
relating to the regulation by the Regulatory Conmm ssion of
Al aska of an in-state gas pipeline project developed by the
Al aska Gasline Devel opnent Cor por ati on; relating to the
regul ation by the Regul atory Conm ssion of Alaska of an in-state
natural gas pipeline that is expressly authorized to provide
transportation as a contract carrier; relating to the Al aska
Nat ural Gas Devel opnent Authority; relating to the procurenent
of certain services by the Alaska Natural Gas Devel opnent
Aut hority; exenpting property of a project developed by the

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -1- April 3, 2012



Al aska Gasline Developnent Corporation from property taxes
before the conmencenent of commercial operations; and providing
for an effective date."

- REMOVED FROM AGENDA

SENATE BILL NO 223

"An Act relating to a credit against the net incone tax for a
contribution nade by a taxpayer to a nonprofit organization that
provi des an energency shelter for the honeless or a facility for
al cohol or drug detoxification."

- MOVED CSSB 223(CRA) QUT OF COW TTEE

COW TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO 264( CRA)

"An Act allowing a deferral of nunicipal property taxes on the
increase in the value of r eal property attributable to
subdi vision of that property; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 223

SHORT TI TLE: TAX CRED: CONTR. TO HOVELESS SHELT/ DETOX
SPONSOR(s): COMMUNI TY & REG ONAL AFFAI RS

03/ 02/ 12 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 02/ 12 (S) CRA, FIN

03/ 15/ 12 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 15/ 12 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 15/ 12 (S) M NUTE( CRA)

03/ 27/ 12 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 27/ 12 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 27/ 12 (S) M NUTE( CRA)

03/ 29/ 12 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 29/ 12 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 29/ 12 (S) M NUTE( CRA)

04/ 03/ 12 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

BILL: HB 264
SHORT TITLE: MUNI PROPERTY TAX DEFERRAL: SUBDI VI SI ONS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) MUNOZ

01/17/ 12 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/13/12
01/ 17/ 12 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 2- April 3, 2012



01/17/ 12 (H) CRA, FIN

02/ 14/ 12 (H) CRA AT 8: 00 AM BARNES 124

02/ 14/ 12 (H) Heard & Held

02/ 14/ 12 (H) M NUTE( CRA)

02/ 16/ 12 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

02/ 16/ 12 (H) Moved CSHB 264(CRA) Qut of Commt

02/ 16/ 12 (H) M NUTE( CRA)

02/ 17/ 12 (H CRA RPT CS(CRA) 5DP

02/ 17/ 12 (H) DP: AUSTERMAN, Cl SSNA, GARDNER,
MUNQZ

02/ 22/ 12 (H FIN AT 1: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

02/ 22/ 12 (H) Moved CSHB 264( CRA) CQut of Conmit

02/ 22/ 12 (H) M NUTE( FI N)

02/ 24/ 12 (H FIN RPT CS(CRA) 5DP 3NR

02/ 24/ 12 (H) DP: NEUNAN, GARA, EDGVON,
THOVAS

02/ 24/ 12 (H NR: FAI RCLOUGH, T.WLSON, DOOGAN

03/ 26/ 12 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

03/ 26/ 12 (H) VERSI ON:  CSHB 264( CRA)

03/ 28/ 12 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

03/ 28/ 12 (S) CRA

04/ 03/ 12 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

DAVI D SCOTT, Staff

Senat or Donal d d son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned the anendnment for SB 223.

BRI DI E TRAI NOR, Director

Wl | ness Program

Kawer ak, Inc.

None, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 223.

M CHAEL W LLI AMS, Revenue Auditor

Treasury Division

Departnent of Revenue

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 223.

REPRESENTATI VE CATHY MJUNOZ

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 264.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 3- Apri |

tee

FOSTER,

tee

STOLTZE,

3, 2012



DARRELL BOURNE, Secretary

Board of Directors

Al aska State Hone Buil ders Associ ation
Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports HB 264.

DAVI D OVENS, Legi sl ative Chair

Al aska State Hone Buil di ng Associ ation
Pal mer, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported HB 264.

CHARLES EDWARDSON, Presi dent

Al aska State Hone Buil ders Associ ation
Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported HB 264.

BRUCE GRI GGS, Contractor

SJS Excavati on

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported HB 264.

DAVI D HANNA

CGeneral Contractor

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported HB 264.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:34: 06 PM

CHAIR DONALD OLSON called the Senate Community and Regional
Affairs Standing Commttee neeting to order at 3:34 p.m Present
at the call to order were Senators Wagoner, Kookesh, and Chair
A son. Senator Menard arrived soon thereafter

SB 223- TAX CRED: CONTR. TO HOVELESS SHELT/ DETOX

3:34: 29 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced the consideration of SB 223, which rel ates
to a tax credit for honeless shelters and detoxification
facilities. The bill was heard three previous tines.

DAVI D SCOIT, Staff, Senat or Donald d son, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, said the commttee anended the bill during the [|ast
hearing and it was held in comnmttee to provide tinme for the
public review the change and coment. The committee has since

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -4- April 3, 2012



received letters of support from the Covenant House and the
Al aska Network on Domestic Viol ence.

CHAI R OLSON asked M. Scott to reviewthe bill briefly.

3:35:50 PM
SENATOR MENARD j oi ned the neeting.

MR, SCOIT explained that the bill provides a tax credit up to
$200,000 to a business that donates to a nonprofit organization
that provides enmergency shelter for the honeless or a facility
for alcohol or drug detoxification. He highlighted the changes
from the original bill. The credit is only available to those
nonprofits established on or before January 1, 2012; there is a
five-year sunset so that a future legislature can evaluate the
program and DCCED, not the taxpayer, reports to the legislature
the anmpbunts of the contributions, the recipients, and the tota
credit clained.

3:37:39 PM

BRIDIE TRAINOR, Director, Kawerak Wllness Program Kawer ak,
Inc., said she was also testifying on behalf of the regional
wel | ness forum She stated support for SB 223 and noted that a
letter of support was also sent by the regional wellness forum
She said the tax credit bill is an excellent way for the state
to increase funding for honeless or facilities that provide
al cohol and drug detoxification services.

M5. TRAINCR said the regional hospital in Nome is constantly
hel pi ng people who should either be referred to a detoxification
center or admtted to an inpatient treatnent facility, but are
instead held in jail tenporarily. She cited alcohol-related
statistics since the None treatnment center closed in 2000. She
said services to help the honeless population in None and
t hroughout Al aska are al so needed; nany in this population have
di ed of exposure. She urged passage of SB 223.

CHAIR OLSON asked M. WIllians what fiscal inpact SB 223 wll
have for the state.

3:39:51 PM

M CHAEL WLLIAMS, Auditor, Treasury Division, Departnment of
Revenue, stated that the fiscal note is indetermnate; it would
be based on the anount that corporations decide to give to these
nonprofit organizations.

CHAI R OLSON asked what DOR anticipates in five years.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 5- April 3, 2012



MR WLLIAVMS declined to speculate wuntil a fiscal note is
prepared for version E

CHAIR OLSON surm sed that the inpact would be negligible, given
the size of the state's budget.

MR. WLLIAMS responded that DOR believes it would be able to
adm ni ster the provision under existing budgets and staff. The
fiscal note would reflect zero cost, but there was no estimte
at this tinme on the revenue inpact.

CHAI R OLSON asked M. Scott if he had closing comments.

MR. SCOIT stated that there is a problem in Alaska wth
homel essness and chronic alcohol abuse. The bill seeks to
encourage hel p fromlocal philanthropic organizations.

3:42: 05 PM
SENATOR MENARD commented that honelessness and al cohol abuse
af fects everyone. She urged support for the bill.

CHAIR OLSON found no further questions or discussion and asked
the will of the conmttee.

3:43: 03 PM

SENATOR WAGONER noved to report CS for SB 223(CRA) from
commttee with individual recommendations and attached fiscal
not e(s).

3:43: 28 PM
CHAI R OLSON announced that w thout objection CSSB 223(CRA) noved
from the Senate Community and Regional Affairs Standing
Comm ttee.

At ease from3:43 p.m to 3:45 p.m

HB 264- MUNI PROPERTY TAX DEFERRAL: SUBDI VI SI ONS

3:45: 05 PM
CHAI R OLSON announced the consideration of HB 264, which rel ates
to a nunicipal property tax deferral for subdivisions.

3:46: 58 PM
REPRESENTATI VE CATHY MJUNQZ, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of
HB 264 introduced the bill speaking to the follow ng sponsor
st at enent :

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 6- April 3, 2012



Passage of House Bill 264 will give municipalities the
option to provide an incentive to develop land for
housing by deferring for up to five years a property
tax increase associated with subdividing a piece of
property into three or nore parcels.

The neasure would give nunicipalities the flexibility
to defer increases in property taxes on subdivided
parcels until a lot is sold or a city grants a building
permt for that piece of property. It would allow a
| ocal governnment to adopt the optional deferral for al
or a portion of a subdivided portion. It would let a
municipality decide the terns of paying the tax
deferral and when those paynents woul d be due.

Supporters of this neasure say it would renove a
di sincentive for devel oping privately owned property by
holding taxes at the wundeveloped Iland value wuntil
i nprovenents occur that l|lead to a parcel’s being

devel oped and sold - thus becom ng nore val uable and
capable of generating nore revenues for | ocal
governnments that choose to exercise this option
The purpose of the bill Is to encourage |and
devel opment for nore housing and |et |ocal governnents
deci de whether a property tax deferral wll benefit
t hem

3:47:38 PM

SENATOR MENARD noted that the Alaska Minicipal League (AM)
submtted a letter opposing HB 264. She asked if anything had
changed since that letter was witten

REPRESENTATI VE MUNCZ responded that AML was neutral on the bill.
She enphasized that this was a tax deferral not an exenption and
it was optional.

SENATOR MENARD sunmmarized her wunderstanding of the bill and
AM.' s opposition.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ said the intent was always to provide an
option for a tax deferral, but the woriginal title said
"exenption" and AML is generally opposed to bills that exenpt
property taxes. AM. has since withdrawn its objection and is now
neutral on the |egislation.

SENATOR MENARD suggested that if AM. revised its position it
should be clarified in the bill packet.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -7- April 3, 2012



3:50: 02 PM
REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ sai d she agreed.

SENATOR WAGONER asked who woul d eventual |y pay the deferred tax.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ answered that the responsibility lies with
t he devel oper and the deferred tax is due when the |ot sells.

CHAI R OLSON asked if the purchaser actually pays.

REPRESENTATI VE MJUNQZ answered that it beconmes part of the
carrying cost for the developnent of the land. The bill allows
the developer to nove forward w thout the additional carrying
costs of ongoing property tax from increased assessnents. This
makes devel opnment in comrunities nore |ikely.

SENATOR MENARD reviewed the provi si ons and asked for
confirmation that the developer would eventually pay the
deferred taxes.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ said yes; it is an optional provision for
up to five years on all or a portion of the parcels in a
subdi vi si on

SENATOR MENARD asked who woul d decide if the deferral is for al
the parcels or just a portion.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ answered that it would be done by muni cipal
ordi nance.

SENATOR MENARD asked if nunicipalities negotiated for that.

REPRESENTATI VE MJUNQZ answered no; opt i onal property tax
exenptions and deferrals nust be instigated by the municipality
t hrough ordi nance.

SENATOR KOOKESH asked how she decided that three parcels
constitutes a subdivision.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ said the intent was to avoid the situation
of an individual subdividing their property into two lots and
not developing one in order to defer taxes. The |legislation
seeks to increase housing stock in the community.

3:53:16 PM

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 8- April 3, 2012



SENATOR KOOKESH asked for clarification that dividing a piece of
property into two parcels is not considered a subdivision but
three parcels is considered a subdivision

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ reiterated her previous answer.

CHAIR OLSON commented the intention is to keep property owners
from mani pul ati ng the system

REPRESENTATI VE MJUNOZ responded that she would hope to avoid
t hat .

SENATOR MENARD asked how nmany Al askans own five acres.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ said she could not speak to the nunber of
parcels this would affect, but Juneau has a very limted |and
base and the bill seeks to encourage nore devel opnent of that
limted | and base.

CHAI R OLSON asked how this would affect second-class cities that
do not have a property tax.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ answered that in areas where there is no
pl anning and zoning authority, the deferral would end when a
property is devel oped or sold.

CHAIR OLSON asked how properties in the wunorganized borough
woul d be affected.

REPRESENTATIVE MJUNOQZ reiterated that in those jurisdictions
wi thout a permtting authority, the deferral ends when a house
is built or alot is sold.

CHAI R OLSON opened public testinony.

3:56: 07 PM

DARRELL BOURNE, Secretary, Board of Directors, Al aska State Hone
Bui l ders Association, and President Interior Alaska Building
Association, testified in support of HB 264. He relayed his
experience as a partner in a 52-acre subdivision outside of
Fai r banks. The roads and power were conpleted five years ago and
two ten-acre parcels were subdivided so that he and his partner
could build new honmes. However, the new hone market has been
soft and they have sold just three honmes. The only interest is
from the higher-end market and those people want the riverfront
| ots that have yet to be subdi vi ded.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 9- April 3, 2012



MR. BOURNE said that if the Fairbanks North Star Borough were to
adopt this anendnent, he was confident that he and his partner
coul d accommopdate two people who were interested in having hones
built this sumrer. HB 264 would have a positive effect on
Fai rbanks buil ders and the | ocal governnment tax base, he stated.

3:59: 24 PM
SENATOR MENARD asked if he was referring to spec or custom
hones.

MR. BOURNE answered he was tal king about custom hones. If HB 264
were to pass, he could subdivide four or five riverfront |ots,
sell two, and have up to five years to sell the others before he
had to pay the higher taxes.

CHAI R OLSON asked if there are devel opers that m ght go bankrupt
if this bill did not pass.

MR. BOURNE answered that he did not know, but this year is the
nmost difficult in recent years. He added that the bill would
directly affect himand one or two others in the association.

SENATOR MENARD asked if the high-energy costs in Fairbanks were
a factor in the soft new hone nmarket.

MR. BOURNE answered yes.

4.:02:15 PM

DAVID OWENS, Legislative Chair, Al aska State Hone Builders
Association, testified in support of HB 264. It is expensive to
devel op property so it would be beneficial to be able to defer
the higher taxes until the lots are sold. It would encourage
devel opment of an entire subdivision instead the pieceneal
approach. He encouraged the commttee to pass the bill.

4:03: 37 PM

CHARLES EDWARDSON, Pr esi dent, Al aska State Honme Builders
Associ ati on and Wrkforce Devel opnent Director, Ketchikan Indian
Community (KIC), testified in support of HB 264. He relayed that
KIC is developing 19 city lots to construct affordable housing.
If the nmunicipality takes advantage of the provisions in HB 264,
it mght accelerate this developnent. He reiterated support for
the bill.

4:06: 27 PM

BRUCE GRIGGS, Contractor, SJS Excavation, said he had been a
devel oper in the Juneau area for 15 years. He described a seven-

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -10- April 3, 2012



| ot subdivision near MDonalds that he had worked on for six
years. The property tax on the raw piece of Iand was about
$1,000 per nonth, but it increased to $3,500 per nonth as soon
as the property was platted. To date, he and his famly have
paid an additional $62,000 in property tax on that parcel. He
relayed that he was afraid to submt the plat and apply for
permts on another nuch |arger parcel because the property tax
woul d immedi ately increase before any devel opnent takes place.
It does not nmake econom c sense to nove ahead.

CHAI R OLSON asked how devel opers stay in business.

MR. CGRIGES acknowl edged that it was a good question. He
described a developnent from several years ago that was a
“honerun, " but since then the market dropped.

SENATOR WAGONER pointed out that this does not guarantee that
t he borough will change the tax policy.

MR, GRIGGS responded that the Cty and Borough of Juneau (CBJ)
indicated it woul d adopt this option.

SENATOR MENARD asked if he had appeal ed t he assessnent.
MR CRIGGS said $3,500 a nonth was the appeal ed pri ce.
SENATOR MENARD rel ayed a personal experience.

4:15: 02 PM

DAVI D HANNA, Ceneral Contractor, testified in support of HB 264.
He said he had been floating this idea for 10 years and
Representative Munoz was the first legislator to bring it forth.
He said not everybody understands how difficult it is for
developers to get things done in many parts of Al aska.
Devel oping a subdivision is a tine-consumng, costly process,
and property taxes increase before a shovelful of dirt is
turned. This causes developers to hold back and sonetinmes they
mss a boom Even sadder is when a developer is sitting on a
subdi vi sion, paying higher taxes, and has no sales. Oten the
devel oper will not go forward with the subdivision. This creates
a dimnished basis of |and available for people to build houses.
HB 264 will help this situation.

SENATOR MENARD asked if banks were holding back on Ilines of
credit.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -11- April 3, 2012



MR. HANNA confirnmed that it was much nore difficult to get a
| oan for any specul ative venture.

SENATOR MENARD observed that that was another strong argunent in
support of the bill.

CHAI R OLSON questioned why boroughs and nunicipalities couldn't
do this individually in order to encourage devel opnent.

4:21:21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ said state law requires property to be
assessed at fair market value, so as soon as a subdivision plat
is approved the nmunicipality is conpelled to adjust the
assessnent even though no work has occurred.

She thanked the conmttee for hearing the bill and opined that
it was a good piece of legislation. It 1is flexible and
incorporates the concerns of nmunicipalities throughout the
state.

CHAI R OLSON held HB 264 in comm ttee.
4:23: 14 PM
There being no further business to conme before the commttee

Chair O son adjourned the Senate Community and Regional Affairs
Standing Conmittee neeting at 4:23 p. m

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -12- April 3, 2012



